
MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSION 

A G E N D A  

November 02, 2021 

10:00 AM 

150 East Washington Street, Madison, GA 

2nd Floor Board Room 
 

 

Pledge and Invocation 
  

Agenda Approval 
  

Minutes 
1. October 19, 2021 BOC Meeting 

2. October 20 & 21, 2021 BOC Retreat 

  

Time Certain 
 

11:00 AM Planning Commission 
  

Planning Commission New Business 
3. Catherine Morehead is requesting a zoning map amendment, from C1 to C3, for 2 acres 

located at 7181 Atlanta Highway (Tax Parcel 013-004C). 

4. Solid Rock Baptist Church is requesting conditional use approval to locate a community 

church on 10 acres located on Atlanta Highway (Tax Parcel 012-161). 

  

New Business 
5. Resolution 2021-RES-017 -Northeast Georgia Regional Solid Waste Management Plan 

6. Resolution 2021-RES-018 - Redistricting 2021 

7. Morgan County SDS Update 

8. Joint Development Authority Revenue Sharing Agreement Amendment 

9. Sheriff's Office Vehicle Purchases 

10. Laptop Refresh 

11. Vehicle Purchase 

12. County Manager Report 

13. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
14. Litigation 

- 1 -



October 19, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, 

MET THIS DAY IN REGULAR SESSION. 

 
MEETING WAS HELD ON THE SECOND FLOOR OF THE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Philipp von Hanstein, Vice-Chair Ben Riden, Jr., Commissioners Bill 

Kurtz, Donald Harris and Andy A. Ainslie, Jr. 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, County Attorney Christian Henry, Assistant 

County Manager Mark Williams, and County Clerk Leslie Brandt. 

 

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and 

Invocation. 
 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Motion by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve agenda with 

the following changes:  add FY22 Vehicle Purchase under New Business and remove item #2 

Derrick Williamson-Exotic Animals.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MINUTES 

September 21, 2021 BOC Meeting 
 

MOTION by Commissioner Kurtz, Seconded by Commissioner Riden to approve the minutes 

as presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

KELVIN BRINEY IS REQUESTING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT, FROM R2 TO 

C2, FOR 7.10 ACRES LOCATED AT 1231 TURNER ROAD (TAX PARCEL 035-175A) 

Planning Director Chuck Jarrell presented a request for Kelvin Briney.  Briney is requesting a 

zoning map amendment for 7.1 acres located at 1231 Turner Road, from R2 (medium density 

residential) to C2 (general commercial).  The property is on a residential road and is surrounded 

by R2 zoning.  He is requesting to expand the existing non-conforming use on the property as an 

auto repair and towing business.  The applicant also wants to add an enclosed storage yard for 

the towing business. 

 

The applicant approached the planning office about constructing a new building on the property.  

He pulled a permit for a residential accessory building.  However, that building is actually for 

the new auto repair shop.  The permit has been put on hold pending the outcome of today’s zoning 

action. 

 

Both the building and tow yard are prohibited additions to a non-conforming use as stated in 

Chapter 8.4 of the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

The Planning Commission voted unanimously to deny the request due to spot zoning, traffic and 

the width of the road. 

 
Chairman von Hanstein allowed proponents to speak: 

No one spoke in favor of the request. 

 
Chairman von Hanstein allowed opponents to speak: 

Sheila Tolbert is a resident on Turner Road and spoke in opposition of the zoning request.  Tolbert 

does not have an issue with the business but doesn’t feel the expansion is conducive for the area. 

 

Annette Cooper lives in Fayetteville but owns property on Turner Road behind Briney’s current 

shop.  Cooper stated that she has had issues with the shop disposing debris on her property. 

 
MOTION by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Ainslie to deny the request for 

a zoning map amendment.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

PROCLAMATION-WINN BROWN & ETHAN ROBERTS 

The Board presented Winn Brown and Ethan Roberts with a proclamation for their heroic actions 

- 2 -



October 19, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

on June 12th, 2021 at a tragic accident that occurred in Morgan County on Highway 83. 

 

5311 GRANT APPLICATION 

This Grant is the support Morgan County Transit receives from the Federal Transit 

Administration (FTA) through the GA Department of Transportation.  The FTA requires an 

application to be submitted each year to continue funding assistance. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Kurtz to approve the 

resolution authorizing the filing of the application and authorize the Chairman to sign all grant 

application documents, certificates and award documents for FY2023.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

REPLACEMENT OF PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT AT BILL WOOD PARK 

Replacement playground equipment at Bill Wood Park was included in the FY22 Capital Budget.  

Staff recommends the purchase and installation be awarded to Play South Playground Creators 

for $65,000.00 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the purchase 

and installation of playground equipment for Bill Wood Park from Play South Playground 

Creators for $65,000.00 as presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

RESOLUTION-ENDORSING TOURISM ATTRACTION PROJECT–GA SAFARI 

CONSERVATION PARK 

This resolution is to support the GA Safari Conservation Park tourism attraction project. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Riden to approve resolution 

2021-RES-016 as presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

ANIMAL SERVICES FEES AMENDMENT 

This amendment request is to add a registration fee for wild and exotic animals in the amount of 

$20.00 per animal.  The fee will be waived if the person/business is licensed by the State for 

exhibition or rehabilitation of wild and exotic animals. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the 

amendment to Animal Services Fees as presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

PROPERTY TO BE DECLARED SURPLUS 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Kurtz to approve the items to 

be declared surplus and sold/disposed as presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

FY22 VEHICLE PURCHASE 

The FY22 budget included funding for 8 vehicles.  Since the budget approval there is one 

modification to approve.  The funding for a vehicle for Animal Services and an additional $6,000 

from contingency needs to be transferred to IT for a vehicle purchase. 

- 3 -



October 19, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Staff recommends purchasing one F-250 from Courtesy Ford for $38,479, two F-350’s from 

Courtesy Ford totaling $86,058.01, one F-250 from Allan Vigil for $26,050 and four F-150’s 

from Covington Ford Totaling $112,813. 

 

 
MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to amend the budget to 

transfer $24,000 from Animal Services and $6,000 from contingency to IT for a vehicle purchase. 

And to approve the following vehicle purchases:  two F-250’s from Allan Vigil Ford totaling 

$61,305.00, two F-350’s from Courtesy Ford totaling $86,058.01 and four F-150’s from 

Covington Ford Totaling $112,813.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

COMMISSIONER LIAISON REPORTS 
Commissioners gave updates on Liaison assignments. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

No public comments were made. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit Regular Session 

and adjourn at 5:58 p.m.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk        

- 4 -



October 20th & 21st, 2021 

BOC Retreat 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

MORGAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

PLANNING RETREAT 

Lake Lanier 

7000 Lanier Islands Pkwy. 

Buford, GA 30518 

October 20th & 21st, 2021 

9:00 A.M.  

 
RETREAT SUMMARY 

 

Participants: 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

Ben Riden, Vice-Chair 

Donald Harris, Commissioner 

Andy Ainslie, Commissioner 

Bill Kurtz, Commissioner 

Adam Mestres, County Manager 

Mark Williams, Assistant County Manager 

Chuck Jarrell, Planning Director 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk 

Lori Sayer, Finance Director 

 

Facilitator: 

Adam Mestres, County Manager 

 

Mestres opened the meeting and then led a discussion on the topics below. 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~   
 

1. Planning & Development 

o Planning Director and the Board discussed the comprehensive plan update 

o Discussed accessory dwellings, legacy splits, variances and conditional uses 

o Possible broadband solutions 

 

2. Public Works 

o Road repairs 

o Litter control 

o Bridge inspections 

 

3. Recreation 

o Discussed future projects for recreation 

 

4. County Buildings 

o Discussed county building uses, renovations and feasibility study 

 

5. Administration 

o Finance Director Lori Sayer gave an overview of the county’s finances 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

- 5 -



1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: 7181 Atlanta Highway  

Property tax parcel: 013-004C  

Acreage: 2 acres  

Applicant: Catherine Morehead  

Applicant’s Agent:    

Property Owner: S&B Property, LLC, 378 Thurman Baccus Road, Social Circle, GA 

Existing Zoning: C1 (Neighborhood Commercial) 

Proposed Zoning: C3 (Heavy Commercial)  

 

Summary 

        

 

Catherine Morehead is requesting a zoning map amendment for 2 acres on Atlanta Highway, from C1 to 

C3. The property is best known as the old Cowboys restaurant. The subject property was split from the 

larger 10+ acres in September 2021. Please see the updated plat on the next page. The property is 

adjacent to C3 property on the west, and C3 zoning is located east on Dixie Highway and across Highway 

278. 

Petition for:  Zoning Map Amendment  

        

- 6 -



2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

The rezoning request is only for the newly split 2 acres. The 

entrance to the property is from Atlanta Highway. There is no 

entrance off of Dixie Highway and topography would make a 

second entrance from Dixie Highway difficult.  

The applicant is seeking approval to locate a data entry and 

distribution center on the property. The business provides 

fulfilment services for clients which can include t-shirts, grout 

cleaning machines, exercise equipment, steamers, clothing, gift 

cards and other items. The items arrive via UPS, FedEx and USPS. 

Larger quantities are delivered by tractor trailer. The items are 

then sent to residential addresses via UPS, FedEx and USPS. 

Tractor trailers are expected only twice a month and no tractor 

trailers will be permitted to remain on site. The business will be 

open Monday through Friday 8:00am to 5:00pm.  

Currently the business has 4 employees, all of whom will be 

moving with the business to Morgan County, if approved. The 

applicant hopes the business will grow enough to allow for 

expansion and the hiring of more employees. She believes the 

building is big enough to accommodate growth but acknowledges 

the possibility of additions if the business increases enough.  

 

 

The property is 

located near the 

county line with 

Walton County 

and has several 

commercial 

businesses nearby, 

including West 

Morgan Storage, 

Just Right Signs 

and Maurice 

Bennett’s auto 

repair. The two 

buildings to the 

west are currently 

vacant. 

 

- 7 -



3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

The property is currently zoned C1 and seeking redesignation to C3. See below for district descriptions 

from the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance.  

 

Chapter 4.7   Neighborhood Commercial District (C1) 

 

The Neighborhood Commercial District is intended for the development of small nodes of retail sales and 

service establishments which, when appropriately located, are designed to provide limited convenience 

shopping and services for surrounding areas.  

 

These districts are not intended for auto-oriented business or strip center development, Neighborhood 

Commercial Districts should provide access to pedestrians and vehicles. 

 

This district is appropriately located in areas shown as traditional neighborhood residential and 

commercial on the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Chapter 4.9   Heavy Commercial District (C3) 

 

The Heavy Commercial District is intended to provide areas for auto oriented businesses and commercial 

uses, which benefit from direct access to the county’s major transportation routes, including Interstate 20. 

C3 uses are generally not appropriate for single lot development, and the development of planned 

commercial nodes, when possible, is encouraged. 

 

Due to the intensity of use and off site impacts, Heavy Commercial Districts are not appropriate for 

locations abutting single-family residential districts.  These districts should be located in appropriate areas 

designated as commercial on the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Staff suggested the applicant apply for a zoning map amendment based on Table 4.1 which states 

Warehouses, including Distribution, are only allowed in the C3 zoning district. 

 

 

 
 

The Character Area Map from the Morgan County 

Comprehensive Plan shows the property is within the 

Transitional District. Development patterns within this district 

includes residential, retail/commercial, office, industrial, 

entertainment and agricultural. The goal is to make 

appropriate transitions from commercial areas and high- 

density residential development to low density residential and 

agricultural uses.  

- 8 -



4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
        

(Please note that the criteria below are bulleted in the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance, Section 19.3.1. 

They are numbered here for ease of use.  

1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses and Districts:  Existing uses and use districts of surrounding 
and nearby properties, whether the proposed use district is suitable in light of such existing uses 
and use districts of surrounding and nearby properties, and whether the proposal will adversely 
affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby properties.  

2. Property Value:  The existing value of the property contained in the petition under the existing 

use district classification, the extent to which the property value of the subject property is 

diminished by the existing use district classification, and whether the subject property has a 

reasonable economic use under the current use district.  

3. Suitability:  The suitability of the subject property under the existing use district classification, 

and the suitability of the subject property under the proposed use district classification.  

4. Vacancy and Marketing:  The length of time the property has been vacant or unused as currently 

used under the current use district classification; and any efforts taken by the property owner(s) 

to use the property or sell the property under the existing use district classification.  

5. Evidence of Need:  The amount of undeveloped land in the general area affected which has the 

same use district classification as the map change requested. It shall be the duty of the applicant 

to carry the burden of proof that the proposed application promotes public health, safety, 

morality or general welfare.  

6. Public Facilities Impacts:  Whether the proposal will result in a use, which will or could cause an 

excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, schools, parks 

or other public facilities and services.  

7. Consistency with Comprehensive Plan:  Whether the proposal is in conformity with the policy 

and intent of the locally adopted comprehensive plan.  

8. Other Conditions:  Whether there are any other existing or changing conditions affecting the use 

and development of the property that give supporting grounds for either approval or 

disapproval of the proposal.  

 

Staff Comments 

        
The proposed zoning district appears to be appropriate for the location on the highway and the desired 

zoning district is adjacent, eliminating a potential concern for spot zoning. Staff concerns are related to 

uses allowed in C3 zoning which may not be appropriate for a gateway into the county. Should this 

business fail or move, the zoning designation could allow undesirable uses. Staff suggests a review of the 

use table to determine if uses should be prohibited as a condition, should approval be recommended, 

including but not limited to automobile sales, heavy equipment sales, farm equipment sales, and 

manufactured home sales. The use chart is attached for your reference. 

 

- 9 -



- 10 -



- 11 -



- 12 -



- 13 -



- 14 -



- 15 -



- 16 -



 
 

1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: Confederate Road    

Property tax parcel: 012-161  

Acreage: 10 acres  

Applicant: Solid Rock Baptist Church 

Applicant’s Agent: Mike Franklin- Pastor   

Property Owner: Jeff and Cathy Vines 

Existing Use: Vacant  

Proposed Use: Community Church 

 

Summary 

 
Solid Rock Baptist Church is requesting conditional use approval for a community church on 10 acres 

located on Atlanta Highway. Solid Rock is an existing church in Covington and is seeking to move the 

church to Morgan County. The property is currently vacant and is bordered by one residence and a power 

easement. Please note the property line is shown incorrectly in the aerial photo above; the property line 

extends to the center of the easement. See attached recorded plat. 

Petition for:  Conditional Use – Community Church 

        

- 17 -



 
 

2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

 
The property is located on Atlanta Highway between Old Mill Road and the county line. For reference, the 

old Cowboys location is marked with a red star in the photo above. GDOT approval will be required for 

the church entrance from Atlanta Highway, which has already been discussed with church 

representatives. If approved, the church may purchase an additional 5 acres (shown outlined in red) 

which would connect them to Dixie Highway and allow for a second entrance.  

The property is zoned 

Agricultural 

Residential (AR) and 

is surrounded by AR 

zoning. The area 

around the intersection 

of Dixie Highway and 

Atlanta Highway has 

several parcels that 

are commercially 

zoned.  

Please see attached 

for site plan and floor 

plan. The church is 

proposing a metal 

building with a seating 

capacity of 399. They 

are aware the parking lot requires pavement. The church intends to develop the property in phases, 

which the main church building followed by a ballfield and a concession/restrooms building. The church 

may expand ministry services with another building in the future, but that is not part of this application. 

One Sunday service is currently planned, with Wednesday afternoon bible study. 

- 18 -



 
 

3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

The Character Area Map from the Comprehensive Plan shows the area as Transitional. Development 

patterns within this district includes residential, retail/commercial, office, industrial, entertainment and 

agricultural. The goal is to make appropriate transitions from commercial areas and high- density 

residential development to low density residential and agricultural uses. 

 

Section 7.19.1   Stand-Alone Churches 

 

When permitted or approved as a conditional use in a zoning district, stand-alone churches and their 

customary accessory buildings shall: 

 

• Be located on a lot with a minimum of two (2) acres that fronts on a public right of way or a private 

street that connects with a public right of way; 

• Be set back a minimum of fifty (50) feet from all property lines; 

• Have a minimum ten (10) foot wide natural or planted buffer provided within the required setback; 

• Meet the parking requirements for the occupancy load; 

• Require a conditional use permit for any new church or accessory use such as fellowship halls, 

ball fields, shelters, pavilions, schools, class room buildings, etc. 

 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
Section 21.3.1 Required Findings from Conditional Use Approval from the Morgan County Zoning 

Ordinance: 

1. Adequate provision is made by the applicant to reduce any adverse environmental impacts of 

the proposed use to an acceptable level; 

- 19 -



 
 

4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

2. Vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement on adjacent streets will not be substantially hindered 

or endangered; 

3. Off-street parking and loading, and the entrance to and exit from such parking and loading, will 

be adequate in terms of location, amount and design to service the use; 

4. Public facilities and utilities are capable of adequately serving the proposed use; 

5. Granting the request would not be an illogical extension of a use which would introduce  

damaging volumes of (1) agricultural, (2) commercial, (3) industrial, or (4) high density 

apartment use into a stable neighborhood of well-maintained single family homes, and likely 

lead to decreasing surrounding property values, neighborhood deterioration, spreading of 

blight, and additional requests of a similar nature which would expand the problem; 

6. Granting the request would not lead to congestion, noise and traffic hazards or overload public 

facilities, current or planned; 

7. Granting the request would conform to the general expectation for the area population growth 

and distribution according to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 

8. Granting the request would not lead to a major negative change in existing (1) levels of public 

service, (2) government employees or (3) fiscal stability; 

9. Granting the request would not have a “domino effect,” in that it becomes the opening wedge 

for further rapid growth, urbanization or other land-use change beyond what is indicated in the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 

Staff Comments 

        
The submitted plan meets the county regulations for churches, including the setbacks, landscape buffers 

and state water buffers (for the creek on the property). The plan indicates there are 100 parking spaces, 

which meets the requirements for 400 non-fixed seats. The floor plan has not been reviewed for code 

compliance but shows the general concept for the layout. For clarification, the church is seeking 

approval of the church complex, including the church building, the ballfield and a concession stand, to 

be constructed in phases.  

 

 

 

- 20 -



- 21 -



- 22 -



- 23 -



- 24 -



- 25 -



- 26 -



- 27 -



- 28 -



- 29 -



- 30 -



- 31 -



- 32 -



- 33 -



- 34 -



- 35 -



- 36 -



- 37 -



- 38 -



- 39 -



- 40 -



- 41 -



- 42 -



- 43 -



- 44 -



- 45 -



- 46 -



- 47 -



- 48 -



- 49 -



- 50 -



- 51 -



- 52 -



- 53 -



- 54 -



- 55 -



- 56 -



- 57 -



- 58 -



- 59 -



- 60 -



- 61 -



- 62 -



- 63 -



- 64 -



- 65 -



- 66 -



- 67 -



- 68 -



- 69 -



- 70 -



- 71 -



- 72 -



- 73 -



- 74 -



- 75 -



- 76 -



- 77 -



- 78 -



- 79 -



- 80 -



- 81 -



- 82 -



- 83 -



- 84 -



- 85 -



- 86 -



- 87 -



- 88 -



- 89 -



- 90 -



- 91 -



- 92 -



- 93 -



- 94 -



- 95 -



- 96 -



- 97 -



- 98 -



- 99 -



- 100 -



- 101 -



- 102 -



- 103 -



- 104 -



- 105 -



- 106 -


	Top
	Item1.	October 19, 2021 BOC Meeting
	10-19-2021 BOC Minutes - draft-complete

	Item2.	October 20 & 21, 2021 BOC Retreat
	10-20 &amp; 10-21, 2021 BOC Retreat Minutes

	Item3.	Morehead rezoning
	staffreport.october.morehead.rezone

	Item4.	Solid Rock conditional use
	staffreport.october.solidrock.cu.church

	Item5.	Resolution 2021-RES-017 -Northeast Georgia Regional Solid Waste Management Plan
	Solid Waste Management Plan Resolution

	Item6.	Resolution 2021-RES-018 - Redistricting 2021
	Redistriciting Resolution

	Item7.	Morgan County SDS Update
	November_2_2021_SDS_Update

	Item8.	Joint Development Authority Revenue Sharing Agreement Amendment
	Nov_2_2021_Revenue_Sharing_Agreement

	Item9.	Sheriff's Office Vehicle Purchases
	Agenda Request - CID Vehicles_001

	Item10.	Laptop Refresh
	Agenda Request - Laptop Replacement

	Item11.	Vehicle Purchase
	Agenda Reqeust - Public Buildings Vehicle

	Item12.	County Manager Report
	Item13.	Public Comments on Agenda Items
	Item14.	Executive 11022021
	Bottom

